
 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 05 11\2020 05 11 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

          
 

 
This meeting is being held via Zoom Teleconference and will be recorded.  
Meeting details as follows: 

   Click link to join meeting: https://zoom.us/j/98918787320 Meeting ID: 989 1878 7320 
 

 
COUNCIL 
Mayor Neil Belenkie 
Councillor Rob Begg 
Councillor Carolina Clark 
Councillor Bruce Drake 
Councillor Liisa Wilder 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 Mayor Neil Belenkie will call the meeting to order. 

2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

2.1 Regular Council Meeting, May 11, 2020 

 Recommendation: 

 That the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting, May 11, 2020 be approved as 
circulated. 

3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 

3.1 Regular Council Meeting, April 27, 2020 

 Recommendation: 

 That the minutes from the Regular Council Meeting held April 27, 2020 be 
adopted. 

4. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS  

5. REPORTS 

5.1  Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated May 11, 2020 regarding 
Investment of Surplus and Reserve Funds 

 Recommendation: 

 That the report dated May 11, 2020 regarding “Investment of Surplus and Reserve 
 Funds” be received for information; and 
 That the Financial Consultant report to Council on Quotations received for 
 Investment Vehicles. 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA 

VILLAGE HALL 
May 11, 2020 

7:00 PM 

https://zoom.us/j/98918787320


REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  May 11, 2020 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 05 11\2020 05 11 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

7:30 pm 5.2 Guy Patterson, Young Anderson, verbal report regarding Clarification of Sharing 
 Legal Opinions 

  Recommendation: 

  That the verbal report from Guy Patterson, Young Anderson, regarding 
 Clarification of Sharing Legal Opinions be received for information. 

7:45 pm 5.3 Jay Sharpe, Fire Chief, Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department, verbal report 
 regarding Summary of the Two Fires at Turtlehead Road and Senkler Road   

  Recommendation: 

That the verbal report from Jay Sharpe, Fire Chief, Sasamat Volunteer Fire 
Department regarding Summary of the Two Fires at Turtlehead Road and 
Senkler Road be received for information. 
 

 5.4 Chris Boit, Engineering Consultant, ISL Engineering and Land Services Ltd., 
 report dated May 6, 2020 regarding Belcarra Water System 

  Recommendation: 

 That the report from Chris Boit, Engineering Consultant, ISL Engineering and 
Land Services Ltd., dated May 6, 2020 regarding Belcarra Water System be 
received for information. 

 
5.5 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated May 11, 2020 regarding Fire Hall 

and 5-Year Financial Plan 2020 – 2024 

 Recommendation: 

That Council direct staff to leave the 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan Bylaw as is and 
to provide clarification on the purpose and intent of including the fire hall capital 
expenditure in the 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan Bylaw through other public 
communication avenues and re-address the fire hall issue in  the upcoming 2021 
– 2025 Financial Planning / Budgeting process, based on obtaining updated 
information on the fire hall. 

 
6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND PROJECT LEADS 

6.1 Councillor Drake verbal report regarding the Water System Capacity for Fire 
Protection Committee 

7. BYLAWS 

7.1 Village of Belcarra 2020 Annual Tax Rates Bylaw No. 560, 2020 

 Recommendation: 

 That the “Village of Belcarra 2020 Annual Tax Rates Bylaw No. 560, 2020” be 
 adopted.  

 

 

 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  May 11, 2020 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 05 11\2020 05 11 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

7.2 Village of Belcarra Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Scheme for 2020 
 Bylaw No. 562, 2020 

 Recommendation: 

 That the “Village of Belcarra Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Scheme for 
 2020 Bylaw No. 562, 2020” be adopted. 

8. CORRESPONDENCE/PROCLAMATIONS 

Recommendation: 

 That correspondence items 8.1 – 8.7 be received. 

 INFORMATION ITEMS 

8.1 James Baker, Mayor, Lake Country, letter dated April 15, 2020 to the Honourable  
 Bill Morneau, Minister of Finance regarding Interest Charged on Deferred Mortgage 
 Payments 

8.2 Richard Stewart, Mayor, city of Coquitlam, letter dated April 24, 2020 to Sav Dhaliwal, 
 Chair, Board of Directors, Metro Vancouver regarding COVID-19 Pandemic – Metro 
 Vancouver Response 

8.3 Linda Buchanan, Mayor, City of North Vancouver, letter dated April 30, 2020 to 
 Honourable Selina Robinson, Minister of Municipal Affairs & Housing regarding 
 Supporting British Columbians During the COVID-19 Pandemic  

8.4 Jay Sharpe, Fire Chief, Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department, email dated               
April 27, 2020 regarding Letter on the April 27, 2020 Council Agenda Quoting the   

 Fire Chief 

8.5  Ron Hicks & Janet Robertson, Belcarra Residents, letter dated April 25, 2020 
 regarding Negative Impact of Road End Sales 

8.6 Ingrid Rice, Belcarra Resident, email dated April 25, 2020 regarding Road End Sales 
 to Finance Belcarra Waterflow / Reservoir 

8.7 Kim Alfreds, Belcarra Resident, email dated April 26,2020 regarding Water 
Resources and Road Ends 

  
9. NEW BUSINESS 

10. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 

11. RESOLUTION TO CLOSE MEETING 

That the May 11, 2020 meeting of Council be closed pursuant to the Community 
Charter Section 90 (1) “A part of a Council meeting may be closed to the public if 
the subject matter being considered relates to or is one or more of the following: 

(k) negotiations and related discussions respecting the proposed provision 
of a municipal service that are at their preliminary stages and that, in the 
view of the council, could reasonably be expected to harm the interests of 
the municipality if they were held in public.” 

 

 



REGULAR COUNCIL AGENDA  May 11, 2020 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 05 11\2020 05 11 Regular Council Agenda.docx 

12. ADJOURNMENT 

 Recommendation: 

 That the May 11, 2020 Regular Meeting be adjourned. 
 



             
 

Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting for the Village of Belcarra held April 27, 2020 at the 
Municipal Hall, 4084 Bedwell Bay Road, Belcarra, BC. 

 
This meeting was held via Zoom Teleconference and was recorded. 

 

Council in Attendance 
Mayor Neil Belenkie 
Councillor Rob Begg 
Councillor Carolina Clark  
Councillor Bruce Drake 
Councillor Liisa Wilder  

Staff in Attendance 
Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
Stewart Novak, Public Works & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator  
Paula Richardson, Municipal Coordinator 

Also in Attendance 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, K&E Business Services  
Chris Boit, Engineering Consultant, ISL Engineering and Land Services Ltd. 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 Mayor Belenkie called the Zoom meeting to order at 7:00 pm.    

2. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

2.1 Regular Council Meeting, April 27, 2020 

Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 

 That the agenda for the Regular Council Meeting, April 27, 2020 be approved as 
circulated. 

CARRIED 
 

3. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 

3.1 Regular Council Meeting, April 6, 2020 

Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 

That the minutes from the Regular Council Meeting held April 6, 2020 be adopted. 

CARRIED 
 
 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 
REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES 

VILLAGE HALL 
 April 27, 2020 

 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
3.1



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  April 27, 2020 

Page 2 of 6 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 05 11\2020 04 27 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 

 

 
4. DELEGATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 

 No items. 

5. REPORTS 

5.1 Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer, report dated April 27, 2020 regarding Update 
to Evangelical Laymen’s Church Temporary Use Permit No. 2019-01 

 L. Dysart outlined the report. Bryant Ko, Director, Evangelical Laymen’s Church (ELC) 
provided an overview of the potential plan for access. Discussion ensued. 

 Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Wilder 

 That the area for the Temporary Use Permit No. 2019-01 for Evangelical Laymen’s 
 Church be expanded to include the adjacent building to the Tea Room to allow for 
 bread baking to support “Breadmaking Workshops”; and 
 That the Evangelical Laymen’s Church (ELC) access condition be revised to state 
 that the Village must be provided with an Access Plan. 

CARRIED 

5.2 Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant, report dated April 27, 2020 regarding Annual Tax 
 Rates Bylaw and Alternative Municipal Tax Scheme Bylaw 

 K. Bjorgaard outlined the two Bylaws and noted that the payments to other agencies 
 such as TransLink and BC Assessment are to be paid as scheduled with the School 
 District tax being deferred until December 2020. 

 Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 

1) That the Village of Belcarra 2020 Annual Tax Rates Bylaw No. 560, 2020 
 receive first, second and third reading. 

CARRIED 

 Council discussed the Alternative Municipal Tax Scheme Bylaw.  

 Moved by:  Councillor Drake 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 

 That the Alternative Municipal Tax Scheme Bylaw for 2020 Bylaw No. 562, 2020 be 
amended by maintaining:  

  “3. a) If all or part of the property taxes for 2020 are not paid by the July 2, 2020, 
          due date, the Village of Belcarra will add to the unpaid property taxes a  
          penalty equal to 2% of the portion that remains unpaid;” and 

 That 3. b) be amended to a 3% penalty as follows: 
  “3. b) If all or part of the property taxes for 2020 are not paid by September 2, 

          2020, the Village of Belcarra will add to the unpaid property taxes a further 
          penalty equal to 3% of the portion that remains unpaid.” 

CARRIED 
Mayor Belenkie & Councillor Begg voted in opposition 

         
   
 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  April 27, 2020 

Page 3 of 6 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 05 11\2020 04 27 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 

 

 Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Begg 

2) That the Village of Belcarra Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Scheme for 2020   
 Bylaw No. 562, 2020 receive first, second and third reading. 

CARRIED 
Councillor Begg voted in opposition 

6. REPORTS FROM MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES 

6.1 Water System Capacity for Fire Protection Committee 

 Councillor Drake outlined a proposal with regard to the benefit of having the Water 
 System Capacity for Fire Protection Committee reconvene. The Committee would be 
 requested to work with Chris Boit, the Village Engineering Consultant, to assist both 
 Council and interested residents to understand, in detail, the issues and options related 
 to the water system and fire protection. 

 Chris Boit outlined the Federal Grant Application that provides an option for funding 
 related to the water reservoir. He noted that if the grant application is successful, the 
 Village may decide, at that time, whether or not to proceed. Considerable discussion 
 ensued. 

 Moved by: Councillor Drake 
 Seconded:  Councillor Clark 

 Whereas the Village Committee on ‘Water System Capacity for Fire Protection’ 
 (WSCFPC) has highly relevant expertise but has reported difficulty in securing some 
 information it considers relevant; and  
 Whereas further public meetings of the WSCFPC could assist both Council and 
 interested residents to understand in detail the issues and options related to the water 
 system and fire protection; be it resolved; 
 That Council request that the WSCFP Committee continue its work with Village support 
 (once  the current Village staff workload associated with COVID 19 and taxes ease) to: 

 1) secure any information or documentation it considers relevant;  
 2) utilize technology such as Zoom to allow open public participation in its  

 meetings. 
 CARRIED 

Councillor Begg voted in opposition 

7. BYLAWS 

 No items. 

8. CORRESPONDENCE / PROCLAMATIONS 

 Moved by:  Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 

 That correspondence items 8.1 to 8.16 be received. 
 CARRIED 

 
 
 
 
 
 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  April 27, 2020 

Page 4 of 6 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 05 11\2020 04 27 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 

 

 ACTION ITEMS 

8.1 Crystal Dunahee, President, Child Find BC, letter dated April 23, 2020 regarding 
 Proclamation for National Missing Children’s Month and Missing Children’s Day 

 Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 

 That Council proclaim May as Missing “Children’s Month” and May 25, 2020 as 
 “Missing Children’s Day” in the Village of Belcarra 

CARRIED 

 INFORMATION ITEMS 

8.2 Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department, Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes of  
Thursday, February 13, 2020 

8.3 Kiersten Enemark, Government Relations Director BC, Shaw Communications Inc., 
 email dated April 8, 2020 regarding #ShawHelps – Supporting Communities during 
 COVID-19 

8.4 Val van den Broek, Mayor, City of Langley, letter dated April 9, 2020 to Sav Dhaliwal, 
 Chair, Board of Directors, Metro Vancouver regarding COVID-19 Pandemic, Metro 
 Vancouver Budget Mitigation Measures 

8.5 Kerri Palmer Isaak, Chair, Board of Education, School District 43, letter dated  
 April 9, 2020 regarding K-12 Response to the COVID-19 Pandemic in School District    
 No. 43 (Coquitlam) (full report available at the Village office) 

8.6 Dennis Sterritt, Mayor, Village of Hazelton, letter dated April 15, 2020 regarding UBCM 
 Resolution regarding BC Gaming Grant 

 Moved by:   Councillor Clark 
 Seconded by: Councillor Drake 

 That a letter of support be sent to the Council of the Village of Hazelton supporting the 
 recommendation that communities under 10,000 in BC should be considered to be 
 eligible to apply for the Community Gaming Grants Program  for Arts and Culture, 
 Sport, Public Safety, Environment and / or Social Services.” 

CARRIED 

8.7 Marvin Rotrand Conseiller Municipal – Snowdon, Ville de Montreal, letter to            
 Jonathan X. Cote Mayor, City of New Westminster dated April 20, 2020 regarding  
 Support for Federal Funding Assistance for Public Transit 

 Council members and the public discussed various aspects of the following 
 correspondence. Considerable discussion ensued. 

8.8 Ralph Drew, Belcarra Resident, email dated April 17, 2020 regarding Budgeting for 
 Firehall Replacement 

8.9 Verna Barrett, letter dated April 19, 2020 regarding Sasamat Volunteer Fire        
 Department History  

8.10 Des Wilson, Belcarra Resident, letter dated April 20, 2020 regarding Impact on 
 Village Finances 

  



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  April 27, 2020 

Page 5 of 6 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 05 11\2020 04 27 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 

 

 Mayor Belenkie noted that a letter was received from Chief Jay Sharpe regarding 
 his comments at a Water System Capacity for Fire Protection Committee meeting that 
 was quoted in the correspondence. His letter will be included on the May 11, 2020 
 Council Agenda. 

8.11 Ian Devlin, Belcarra Resident, email dated April 21, 2020 regarding Comments on 
 Water System Capacity for Fire Protection Committee 

8.12 Martin Debois, Belcarra Resident, letter dated April 20, 2020 regarding Proposed  Major 
 Capital Expenditures 

8.13 Doug Brain, Belcarra Resident, letter dated April 22, 2020 regarding “Water 
 Supply Capacity for Fire Protection” Committee Has Never Recommended the 
 Installation of a New Water Tank 

8.14 Ron Davis, Belcarra Resident, email dated April 21, 2020 regarding Unsafe 
 Parking Area on Bedwell Bay Road, Belcarra 

8.15 The Hubbs Family, Belcarra Residents, letter dated April 22, 2020 regarding Sale 
 of Road Ends 

8.16 Paul Kallio, Belcarra Resident, email dated April 22, 2020 regarding Sale of Road 
 Ends 

9. NEW BUSINESS 

 Notice of Motion 

 Councillor Wilder provided the following Notice of Motion for the May 11, 2020 Council 
 Meeting: 

1. “That the adoption of the 5-Year Financial Plan 2020-2024 Bylaw No. 559, 2020 
be withdrawn; and 

2. That the reference in the 2020-2024 Financial Plan Scenario “C”, be amended to 
reflect that under Major Capital Projects provided for: a New Fire Hall in 2022 at 
a cost of $4,000,000. be removed, and instead have a New Fire Hall recorded 
as a footnote that states an anticipated cost yet to be determined by the 
Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department (SVFD) Board of Trustees.” 

 Considerable discussion ensued. 

 Options Regarding Telus 

 Councillor Drake outlined the potential option of improving fire alarms by having 
 automated fire alarm monitoring of every house in Belcarra. He will take this matter to 
 the WSCFP Committee. 

 Mayor Belenkie noted that thermal imaging cameras may be a viable option. 

 Debris at the Side of the Road 

 Councillor Begg provided information related to debris being dumped on road sides in 
 various locations in Belcarra. 

 L. Dysart requested that pictures and / or license plate numbers be sent to the Village 
 office,  if available. She noted that the next Village chipping event will occur after the 
 COVID-19 pandemic is lifted. 

 

 



REGULAR COUNCIL MINUTES  April 27, 2020 

Page 6 of 6 
J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 05 11\2020 04 27 Regular Council Meeting Minutes.docx 

 

10. PUBLIC QUESTION PERIOD 

 David Goodman, Whiskey Cove Lane, enquired with regard to the potential to provide a 
 copy of the legal opinion on Water Front Road End property sales. 

 Deborah Struk, Belcarra Bay Road, queried with regard to:  

• building up reserves to pay for a new Water Reservoir or Fire Hall 

• tree trimming on Watson Trail 

• if there had been a previous practice of charging residents for use of Road Ends 
adjacent to their properties 

11. ADJOURNMENT 

Moved by:  Councillor Wilder 
 Seconded by: Councillor Clark 

 That the April 27, 2020 Regular Meeting be adjourned at 9:45 pm. 
CARRIED 

 
 
 

Certified Correct: 
 
 
 

 
 

    

Neil Belenkie  
Mayor  

  Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 



 
 

 
 

              
 COUNCIL REPORT 

   

Date: May 11, 2020   

 

From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   

 

Subject: Investment of Surplus and Reserve Funds 

 

 

Recommendation 

That the report dated May 11, 2020 regarding “Investment of Surplus and Reserve Funds” be received for 

information; and 

That the Financial Consultant report to Council on Quotations received for Investment Vehicles. 

Purpose 

The purpose of this report is to outline the process and plans that are being undertaken to maximize 

interest earnings on surplus and reserve funds. 

Background 

Pursuant to the Community Charter, local government investments are limited to the following: 

• Investment of municipal funds 

“183 Money held by a municipality that is not immediately required may only be invested or 

reinvested in one or more of the following: 

(a) securities of the Municipal Finance Authority; 

(b) pooled investment funds under section 16 of the Municipal Finance Authority Act; 

(c) securities of Canada or of a province; 

(d) securities guaranteed for principal and interest by Canada or by a province; 

(e) securities of a municipality, regional district or greater board; 

(f) investments guaranteed by a chartered bank; 

(g) deposits in a savings institution, or non-equity or membership shares of a credit union; 

(h) other investments specifically authorized under this or another Act.” 

Historically and generally speaking, the Village has invested its long term funds in the Municipal 

Financial Authority (MFA) bond fund and its short term funds have remained in the bank earning interest. 

The MFA has three pooled investment funds with different investment time horizons as follows: 

 

1. Money Market Fund – for investments of less than one year 
 

2. Intermediate Fund – for investments from one to three years 
 

3. Bond Fund – for investments of more than three years 

http://www.bclaws.ca/civix/document/id/complete/statreg/96325_01
https://mfa.bc.ca/sites/default/files/Pooled%20Investments/1_mfa_mandate_profile_-_mm_fund_march_2020_rates.pdf
https://mfa.bc.ca/sites/default/files/Pooled%20Investments/2_mfa_mandate_profile_-_intermediate_fund_march_2020_rates.pdf
https://mfa.bc.ca/sites/default/files/Pooled%20Investments/3_mfa_mandate_profile_-_bond_fund_march_2020_rates.pdf
prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.1



Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant 

Council Report: Investment of Surplus and Reserve Funds 

May 11, 2020 

Page 2 of 2 

 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 05 11\2020 05 11 Investment of Surplus & Reserve Funds.docx 
 

 

 

The current and historical performance of the MFA bond fund is as follows: 
 

 
 

As of March 31, 2020 

1 Month 
Non- 

annualized 
% 

3 Months 
Non- 

annualized 
% 

Year-to-Date 
Non- 

annualized 
% 

 

 
1 Year 

% 

 
3 Years 

Annualized 
% 

 
5 Years 

Annualized 
% 

Since 
Inception 

Annualized 
% 

MFA Bond Fund 0.09 1.71 1.71 3.20 2.05 1.80 5.78 

FTSE Canada Short Term 
Overall Bond Index 0.13 1.80 1.80 3.00 1.88 1.52 5.51 

*Portfolio and benchmark performance is net of total fees and expenses of 20 basis points per annum 

 

The Village bank, the Toronto Dominion, pays interest on the Village cash balances of prime minus 2%. 

In January of this year prime was 3.95%, however, prime has now dropped to 2.45% which means that 

the Village is currently earning minimal interest on its bank cash balances of 0.45%. 

 

The keys to maximizing interest earnings on the Village surplus and reserve funds, and the steps that have 

been undertaken and that will be undertaken to achieve maximum returns, are as follows: 

 

• Cash Flow Projections (determines how much money is available to invest and for how long) – a 

robust cash flow projection system has been implemented which may be easily be updated based 

on changing inputs and assumptions. Cash inflows, outflows and balances are projected on a 

monthly basis over an initial 3 year period and on an annual basis for the 2 years thereafter for a 

total 5 year projection period. 

 

• Solid Long-Term Financial Plan – having a solid long-term financial plan (at least 5 years as per 

the Community Charter) is essential to predicting cash needs and related balances particularly 

when larger capital projects are being funded from reserves that need to available for these major 

projects. The Village 2020 budget includes funds to develop an asset management / long-term 

financial plan, which should lead to better projections of future cash needs.  

 

• Quotations – the above noted cashflow projections have produced a schedule of available funds 

which may be invested for various time periods. This schedule will be sent to various investment 

dealers, brokers and banks to obtain quotations for investment vehicles which comply with the 

Community Charter and which maximize investment returns. Once received, these quotations will 

be compared to projected returns from the MFA pooled funds.    

 

• Banking – there will always be the need to have some very short term funds on hand in the bank 

to provide for immediate operating needs. In order to maximize interest earning on bank deposits, 

a comparison will be undertaken with other local government banking arrangements with the view 

of negotiating better interest rates on short term bank cash deposits.  

  
In evaluating the various investment products, the real cost of administration will be taken into account, 

which varies from one investment product and institution to another, as well as the need to maintain 

liquidity, particularly when the future is less predictable.  
 



 

Design Brief 

 

  
 

 

islengineering.com 

ISL is proud to be: Bullfrog Powered | An Aon Best Small and Medium Employer in Canada – Platinum Level Page 1 of 6   

G:\Projects\32000\32400\32482_Belcarra_Master_Standing_Offer\03_Reports\30_Reports\200505_Belcarra fire flow report.docx 
 

#503, 4190 Lougheed Hwy., Burnaby, BC  V5C 6A8   T: 604.629.2696   F: 604.629.2698 

To: Village of Belcarra  Date: May 6, 2020 

Attention: Lorna Dysart Project No.: 32482 

Reference: Belcarra Water System  

From: Chris Boit, P.Eng 

  
 
 
ISL has was requested by the Village to review the existing water system and provide comments on its adequacy in providing 
water for firefighting purposes.  We have conducted a high level review, to determine if there are potential deficiencies in the 
water system.  It should be noted that, if the Village were to proceed with constructing a new reservoir, in depth reviews and 
models should be generated to ensure accuracy fire flows and pressures within the distribution network.   
 

Fire Flow Analysis 

 
There are no set industry standards that instruct Municipalities on how they should design their firefighting.  Typically, most 
Municipalities refer to the Fire Underwriter Survey (FUS) guidelines, as this ensures their residents can insure their personal 
properties against fire damage.  However, water system designs requirements are also set out in subdivision and development 
bylaws.  Municipalities should consider both of these methods when developing Fire flows and ensure the minimum 
requirements of FUS are obtained.   
 
Bylaw 492, 2015 - Subdivision and Development  
 

 
Figure 1: Extract from Subdivision and Development Bylaw 492, 2015 

The above table establishes a flow of 60 l/s for residential properties and 90 l/s for Institutions.  We have discounted 
Commercial as the Village currently does not have properties that fall within this category.   
 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.4



 

Design Brief 

 

  
 

 

islengineering.com 

ISL is proud to be: Bullfrog Powered | An Aon Best Small and Medium Employer in Canada – Platinum Level Page 2 of 6   

G:\Projects\32000\32400\32482_Belcarra_Master_Standing_Offer\03_Reports\30_Reports\200505_Belcarra fire flow report.docx 
 

Fire Underwriter Survey (FUS) Guidelines 
 
FUS develops fire flow requirements by reviewing buildings within a Municipality and applying statistical analysis, likelihood of 
fire and the potential to spread the fire.  The following is a sample analysis of required fire flows for the Village hall (a copy is 
contained at the end of this memo). 
 

 
 
Based on the above analysis, FUS requires a demand supply of 100 l/s.   
 
Note, that an important determining factor of flow rate, is based upon Exposure (step 4).  This requirement is typically based on 
the adjacent property, because fire fighters are concerned with limiting the spread of fire to adjacent properties.  In Belcarra, 
there is a large separation between properties.  However, it is ISL’s opinion that exposure would be determined by separation 
from the tree line in Belcarra’s case.  As the trees have the potential to spread fire through the undergrowth and canopy to the 
next property.  If the same building were evaluated, with this type of exposure, the following flows are determined: 
 



 

Design Brief 

 

  
 

 

islengineering.com 

ISL is proud to be: Bullfrog Powered | An Aon Best Small and Medium Employer in Canada – Platinum Level Page 3 of 6   

G:\Projects\32000\32400\32482_Belcarra_Master_Standing_Offer\03_Reports\30_Reports\200505_Belcarra fire flow report.docx 
 

 
 
If the tree exposure is considered, there is a significant jump in the required flow rate to 167l/s from 100 l/s.   
 
Typically, in most Municipalities the Civic buildings are generally the largest structures.  However, in Belcarra that is not the case 
and it is not unreasonable to see properties in excess of 9000 sq ft.  If such a property were considered, flow rates of 
approximately 225 l/s would be required.   
 
As you can see, there is are a variable number of flow rates that could potentially be accepted as correct.  The decision on 
which one to apply, becomes a risk tolerance decision for the Village.   
 
If we were to base our fire flow requirement on the Village’s existing Bylaw, the Village should be considering a Fire flow that 
meets 90 l/s.  As this is the recommend flow for Institutions and the category the Village Hall falls within.   
 



 

Design Brief 

 

  
 

 

islengineering.com 

ISL is proud to be: Bullfrog Powered | An Aon Best Small and Medium Employer in Canada – Platinum Level Page 4 of 6   

G:\Projects\32000\32400\32482_Belcarra_Master_Standing_Offer\03_Reports\30_Reports\200505_Belcarra fire flow report.docx 
 

The existing Bylaw does not refer to the required duration of fire flow.  Therefore, we recommend basing the duration of fire flow 
as identified in the FUS, which is between 1.75 and 2 hrs.  We would recommend the upper limit of 2 hours. 
 

 

 
 
Therefore, the amount of water required to fight a fire would be: 
 
Volume of water for fire flow = (90 l/s x 60 x 60) x 2hrs = 648,000 liters. 
 

Reservoir sizing  

 
To determine the size of a required reservoir, a number of factors need to be considered, fire flow, residential demand for water 
and the supply rate of water.   
 
Typically, when determining a reservoir capacity, a theoretical water demand is developed. For the purpose of this memo we 
have not undertaken this process as it will take a  significant amount of time and cost.  Therefore, for this review we have 
referred to OPUS’ report dated August 4th, 2017.  Within this report, it identifies maximum daily flow rates (residential demand) 
established via a flow meter.  The maximum flow recorded was 2.5 l/s. In lieu of theoretical numbers, we feel it is appropriate to 
base our analysis on this actual recorded flow rate.  
 
The village’s supply of potable water is supplied by the District of North Vancouver.  The original agreement between the two 
parties was for the supply of 14 l/s.  However, this was later revised to 21 l/s. 
 
Using the identified flow rates, we can determine the flow capacity within the Village’s system 
 
Flow Capacity  =  Supply rate – (Fire Demand + Residential flow demand)   
  = 21 – (90 + 2.5)  
  = - 71.5 l/s 
 
Therefore, during a fire there needs to be storage to offset the deficient flow of 71.5 l/s  
 
Storage required  =  71.5 x 60 x 60 x 2 hrs 
  = 514,800 liters or 515 m3  
 
The existing Tatlow reservoir has an operational storage volume of approximately 300,000 liters, which is less than the required 
storage volume required.  The existing reservoir can supply 70 mins of fire flow at 90 l/s.  

Figure 2: Extract from FUS 



 

Design Brief 

 

  
 

 

islengineering.com 

ISL is proud to be: Bullfrog Powered | An Aon Best Small and Medium Employer in Canada – Platinum Level Page 5 of 6   

G:\Projects\32000\32400\32482_Belcarra_Master_Standing_Offer\03_Reports\30_Reports\200505_Belcarra fire flow report.docx 
 

Risk Consideration  

 
The current infrastructure with the Village has provided residents with the ability to insure their homes against Fire.  Many 
property owners are under the impression that there is a standardized level for fire protection and once this is met, they can be 
assured they are adequately protected and that everyone has the same level of service, i.e protection in Belcarra is the same as 
in Vancouver.  However, this is not the case and the costs of insurance reflect this.  There are 5 levels of Dwelling protection 
grades, higher the level the better the system and the lower the cost of insurance.  The following table identifies these: 
 

 
 
Belcarra is currently assessed as 3A.  To achieve a grade of 3A the following is required.  
 
Public Water Supply 
 
Water supply system designed in accordance with Fire Underwriters Survey standard "Water Supply for Public Fire Protection" 
must meet all minimum standards specified in the document. In general terms, to meet all minimum standards, the water supply 
system should be designed to be capable of providing required fire flows simultaneously with Maximum Daily Consumption at a 
minimum residual pressure of 138 kPa (20 psi), and have not less than 110,000 Litres (24,000 I.gal) in available storage. 
 
Fire Department 
 
Apparatus 
 
For each fire hall with a Dwelling Protection Grade 3A, fire apparatus must include a minimum of one triple combination pumper 
rated at not less than 3000 LPM (625 Igpm at 150 psi) and designed in accordance with: 
 

• Underwriters' Laboratories of Canada (ULC) S515 Automobile Fire Fighting Apparatus, or 

• National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) 1901 Standard for Automotive Fire Apparatus 
 
Credit for fire apparatus will be based on evidence of reliability indicators including the listing of apparatus by ULC, design 
specifications, fire pump service test records, age, maintenance history, etc. Apparatus is evaluated from the perspective of the 
capacity to provide structural fire protection. 
 
To be credited, apparatus must be stored in a suitably constructed and arranged fire hall. 
 



 

Design Brief 

 

  
 

 

islengineering.com 

ISL is proud to be: Bullfrog Powered | An Aon Best Small and Medium Employer in Canada – Platinum Level Page 6 of 6   

G:\Projects\32000\32400\32482_Belcarra_Master_Standing_Offer\03_Reports\30_Reports\200505_Belcarra fire flow report.docx 
 

Fire Force 

 
For each fire hall with a Dwelling Protection Grade 3A, the credited available responding fire force will include at a minimum: 

• 1 Fire Chief (required to respond but not required to be on-duty) 

• 15 auxiliary fire fighters scheduled to respond 
 
Emergency Communications 
 
An adequate and reliable means of receiving alarms of fire and dispatching fire fighters is necessary (ex. public fire number, 
pagers etc.). 
 
Fire Protection Service Area 
 
The boundary of the protected area must be clearly established and registered with the Provincial Government. 
 
Based on the terms laid out by the Fire Underwriter Survey, the Village may not be meeting several requirements, namely the 
required fire flows/storage and possibly a suitable Fire Hall. The Fire Hall may be unsuitable because it does not meet current 
Health and Safe Codes and Seismic requirements.  
 
The Village meets the requirements of appropriate fire force, but it should be noted that the fire fighters are volunteers and not 
career fire fighters.  Therefore, the Village will likely have increased response times to an emergency, which is likely to increase 
the intensity of incident.  Also, as the fire department is not manned by career fire fighters, they could potentially be in a position 
where the lead fire fighter is not an experienced member of the crew.  This could consequently lead to an increase in time 
fighting the fire, which would result in more water to fight the fire.  As the Village relies on Volunteers to fight fires, we would 
recommend providing the best tools available, as the Health and Safety of these individuals should be paramount, as they do 
not receive compensation for the risk they expose themselves to.  
 

Next Steps 

 
The following are high level next steps for the Village to undertake  
 
1. Village to decide if they want to proceed with the construction of a new reservoir 
2. Continue applying for Grant funding opportunities 
3. Engage Engineering consultant to review potential locations and sizing of proposed reservoir. 
4. Apply for use of Crown Land (if required) 
5. Complete Concept designs for reservoir 
6. Apply for Federal and Provincial permits, such as Environmental assessments, Archeology  
7. Complete Detailed designs 
8. Complete Tender Documents and issue for tender 
9. Select and award to Contractor 
10. Construct Reservoir 
11. Commission Reservoir and tie into the existing water system 
 

Recommendations 

 
Based on the afore mentioned analysis, it is ISL’s opinion that the Village of Belcarra should investigate options for increasing 
capacity within the water network, to ensure they meet the requirements as set out by FUS. 
 
If you should have any further questions, please contact the undersigned. 
 
Regards 
 
 
 
 
Chris Boit, P.Eng 



Determination of Required Fire Flow 
FUS, 1999

Existing Developments Required Field

LOW EXPOSURE Table A - Type of Construction Footprint Calculations:

Location: Step Type of Construction Charge

Village Hall Wood Frame (All Combustible) 1.5

1. 1.5 Choose Type of Construction from Table A

Ordinary Construction (Brick or other 

masonry walls, combustible floor and 

interior)

1

Box-> Wood Frame (All Combustible)

Non-combustible Construction 

(unprotected metal structural 

component, masonry or metal walls)

0.8

450 m² see footprint calculations --->

Fire-resistive construction (fully 

protected frame, floors, roof)
0.6

1

Step 1 Required Fire Flow 7000 L/min 117 L/s

Table B - Fire Hazard Occupancy Classification

2. Fire Hazard Occupancies Charge Choose Classification -------> No.2 Classification Charge

0.85 Box-> Limited Combustible Non-Combustible 0.75

Step 2 Required Fire Flow 5950 L/min 99 L/s Limited Combustible 0.85

Address: Combustible 1

4084 Bedwell Bay Rd,  Belcarra, V3H 4P8 3. Sprinkler Protection Free Burning 1.15

Choose Classification From Table C Charge Rapid Burning 1.25

Box-> No Spinklers 0

Choose Additional Credits (If Applicable) Table C - Sprinkler Protection

Box-> Standard Water Supply for Both System and Fire Hose Lines0.1 No. 3 Classification Charge

Automatic Sprinkler Protection 50%

Exposure Calculation Schematic Total Charge 0.1 NFPA Sprinkler Standards 30%

Step 3 Sprinkler Protection Deduction 595.03 L/min 10 L/s No Spinklers 0

4. Exposures Table D - Additional Protection Credits Table E - Separation

Separation Charge No. 3 Additional Credits Charge Separation Charge

Side A 30.1 to 45m 0.05

Standard Water Supply for Both System 

and Fire Hose Lines
10% 0 to 3m 25%

Side B >45m 0 Fully Supervised System 10% 3.1 to 10m 20%

Side C >45m 0 N/A 0% 10.1 to 20m 15%

Side D >45m 0 20.1 to 30m 10%

Total Charge 0.05 30.1 to 45m 5%

>45m 0%

Step 4 Exposure FF Charge 297.52 L/min 5 L/s

Total Required Fire Flow 5653 L/min 94 L/s

=Step 2-Step 3+Step4

Rounded Answer 6000 L/min 100 L/s

Type of Construction

Ground Floor Area

Height in Storeys

Side A

Side B

Side C

Side D

N



Determination of Required Fire Flow 
FUS, 1999

Existing Developments Required Field

HIGH EXPOSURE Table A - Type of Construction Footprint Calculations:

Location: Step Type of Construction Charge

Village Hall Wood Frame (All Combustible) 1.5

1. 1.5 Choose Type of Construction from Table A

Ordinary Construction (Brick or other 

masonry walls, combustible floor and 

interior)

1

Box-> Wood Frame (All Combustible)

Non-combustible Construction 

(unprotected metal structural 

component, masonry or metal walls)

0.8

450 m² see footprint calculations --->

Fire-resistive construction (fully 

protected frame, floors, roof)
0.6

1

Step 1 Required Fire Flow 7000 L/min 117 L/s

Table B - Fire Hazard Occupancy Classification

2. Fire Hazard Occupancies Charge Choose Classification -------> No.2 Classification Charge

0.85 Box-> Limited Combustible Non-Combustible 0.75

Step 2 Required Fire Flow 5950 L/min 99 L/s Limited Combustible 0.85

Address: Combustible 1

4084 Bedwell Bay Rd,  Belcarra, V3H 4P8 3. Sprinkler Protection Free Burning 1.15

Choose Classification From Table C Charge Rapid Burning 1.25

Box-> No Spinklers 0

Choose Additional Credits (If Applicable) Table C - Sprinkler Protection

Box-> Standard Water Supply for Both System and Fire Hose Lines0.1 No. 3 Classification Charge

Automatic Sprinkler Protection 50%

Exposure Calculation Schematic Total Charge 0.1 NFPA Sprinkler Standards 30%

Step 3 Sprinkler Protection Deduction 595.03 L/min 10 L/s No Spinklers 0

4. Exposures Table D - Additional Protection Credits Table E - Separation

Separation Charge No. 3 Additional Credits Charge Separation Charge

Side A 30.1 to 45m 0.05

Standard Water Supply for Both System 

and Fire Hose Lines
10% 0 to 3m 25%

Side B 0 to 3m 0.25 Fully Supervised System 10% 3.1 to 10m 20%

Side C 0 to 3m 0.25 N/A 0% 10.1 to 20m 15%

Side D 0 to 3m 0.25 20.1 to 30m 10%

Total Charge 0.75 30.1 to 45m 5%

>45m 0%

Step 4 Exposure FF Charge 4462.7 L/min 74 L/s

Total Required Fire Flow 9818 L/min 164 L/s

=Step 2-Step 3+Step4

Rounded Answer 10000 L/min 167 L/s

Type of Construction

Ground Floor Area

Height in Storeys

Side A

Side B

Side C

Side D

N



 
 

 
 

              
COUNCIL REPORT 

   

Date: May 11, 2020   

 

From: Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   

 

Subject: Fire Hall and 5-Year Financial Plan 2020 – 2024 

 

 

Recommendation 

That Council direct staff to leave the 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan Bylaw as is and to provide clarification 

on the purpose and intent of including the fire hall capital expenditure in the 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan 

Bylaw through other public communication avenues and re-address the fire hall issue in the upcoming 

2021 – 2025 Financial Planning / Budgeting process, based on obtaining updated information on the fire 

hall. 

 

Purpose 

The purpose of this report is to address the following Notice of Motion from the Council Meeting held 

April 27, 2020:  

1. “That the adoption of the 5-Year Financial Plan 2020 — 2024 Bylaw 559, 2020 be 

withdrawn; and 

2. That the reference in the 2020 2024 Financial Plan Scenario "C", be amended to 

reflect-that under Major Capital Projects Provided For: a New Fire Hall in 2022 at a cost 

of $4,000,000.00 be removed, and instead have the New Fire Hall recorded as a footnote 

that states an anticipated cost yet to be determined by the SVFD Board of Trustees.” 

Background 

Councillor Wilder brought forward the Notice of Motion stated above. A bylaw may not be withdrawn 

but may be amended or repealed as outlined in Section 137 of the Community Charter (see below). In the 

case of the recently adopted 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan Bylaw, amending the Bylaw would be a more 

straight forward procedure. The act of amending is a one step process whereas repealing and re-enacting 

is a two step process. Both courses of action would result in the same outcome – a different Financial Plan 

Bylaw Schedule A (Attachment 1).  

In reference to the second recommendation in the above Notice of Motion, it is not advisable to include a 

footnote in a financial plan schedule, which is attached to and forms part of the Financial Plan Bylaw. The 

actual fire hall expenditure is not included in the Financial Plan numbers in the schedule. Council has 

several practical options to address the intent of the above Notice of Motion, as outlined below.  

It should be noted that Financial Plan Bylaw Schedule A (Attachment 1), does not specifically mention or 

identify a fire hall. Provision for a $4 million dollar fire hall is included in the “Tangible capital assets 

purchased” line item in Schedule A (see highlighted figure in the Schedule A in 2022), with funding 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
5.5

prichardson
Typewritten Text



 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   

Council Report: Fire Hall and 5-Year Financial Plan 2020 – 2024 

May 11, 2020 

Page 2 of 4 

 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 05 11\2020 05 11 Fire Hall and 5-year Financial Plan Bylaw Report.docx 

 

coming from “Transfers from reserves” (see other highlighted item in 2022). The reserves are built up 

from the sale of road end lots. The actual covering report which accompanied the Financial Plan Bylaw 

did include a Scenario C, which did specifically identify the fire hall (Attachment 2).  

Community Charter: 

     “Power to amend or repeal 

137 (1) Unless otherwise provided, 

 (a) the power to adopt a bylaw under this or any other Act includes the power to amend or 

repeal such a bylaw, 

 (b) the included power to amend or repeal must be exercised by bylaw and is subject to the 

same approval and other requirements, if any, as the power to adopt a new bylaw under 

that authority, and 

 (c) a bylaw may include provisions that, at a future date set by the bylaw, amend or repeal 

the bylaw. 

(2) A bylaw that requires approval of the electors or assent of the electors may be amended or   

repealed without that approval or assent if the minister approves and subject to any terms and 

conditions the minister considers appropriate.” 

   “General voting rules 

     123 (1) Unless otherwise provided, a motion on a bylaw or resolution, or on any other question before 

       council, is decided by a majority of the council members present at the meeting.” 

 

Alternate recommendations for Council consideration:  

Option A –  Direct staff to bring forward an amended 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan Bylaw that includes the 

fire hall capital expenditure with the corresponding reserve funding source (same as present 

bylaw schedule) with some cross referenced wording in a footnote (cross referenced to the 

fire hall numbers in 2022) at the bottom of numerical schedule which provides clarification as 

follows:  

                   “A $4 million fire hall replacement capital project is provided for in the ‘tangible capital 

assets purchased’ line in 2022 with funding coming from ‘transfers from reserves’. This 

project is a place holder for a fire hall capital expenditure, the final cost, cost-sharing and 

ownership of which are yet to be determined by the Sasamat Volunteer Fire Department 

(SVFD) Board of Trustees.”  

Option B – Direct staff to bring forward an amended 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan Bylaw that does not 

include the fire hall capital expenditure and related funding.  

 

Attachments 

1. 2020 – 2024 Financial Plan Bylaw Schedule A 

2. Scenario C from previous Financial Plan Bylaw report 

 

    



 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   

Council Report: Fire Hall and 5-Year Financial Plan 2020 – 2024 

May 11, 2020 

Page 3 of 4 

 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 05 11\2020 05 11 Fire Hall and 5-year Financial Plan Bylaw Report.docx 

 

ATTACHMENT 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
Ken Bjorgaard, Financial Consultant   

Council Report: Fire Hall and 5-Year Financial Plan 2020 – 2024 

May 11, 2020 

Page 4 of 4 

 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 05 11\2020 05 11 Fire Hall and 5-year Financial Plan Bylaw Report.docx 

 

ATTACHMENT 2 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

2020 – 2024 Financial Plan Scenario C - As Amended per Council Motion 

  

Description 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 

Property tax increases (including additional 5.75% in each of 2021, 2022 & 

2023 to fund infrastructure deficit) 15% 15.75% 15.75% 15.75% 10% 

Water rate increases (exclusive of parcel tax) 10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 

WARD rate increases 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 

Cumulative Infrastructure Deficit Funding in Above Increases ($350K)  $49,000 $161,000 $350,000  

Major Operating Projects Provided for:  

OCP Update & Review & Asset Management/Long-Term Financial 

Plan 

 

$150,000 
 

   

Major Capital Projects Provided for:  

Land Preparation/Development 

Water Reservoir (73.33% grant funded) 

New Fire Hall 

 

$175,000 

$3,835,000 

 

$175,000 

 

 

 

$175,000 

 

$4,000,000 

  

 

Sales Proceeds Projected from Road-End Lots  

 

$2,000,000 

 

$2,000,000 

 

$2,500,000 

 

 

 



 

 

  
 

 

A bylaw to set Tax Rates for 2020 

WHEREAS pursuant to the provisions of the Community Charter, a municipality must, 
by bylaw, adopt a Financial Plan before the 15th of May in each year; 

AND WHEREAS the Municipal Council caused to be prepared a Five-Year Financial 
Plan for the period 2020 – 2024 inclusive; 

AND WHEREAS pursuant to the provisions of the Community Charter, a Council must, 
by bylaw, and before the 15th of May in each year, impose property value taxes for the 
year by establishing tax rates for: 

a) municipal funding for the Year 2020 of the Five-Year Financial Plan; and 
b) to meet taxing obligations for the Year 2020 in relation to the Greater Vancouver 

Regional District. 

NOW THEREFORE, the Council of the Village of Belcarra enacts as follows: 

1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Village of Belcarra 2020 Annual Tax 
Rates Bylaw No. 560, 2020”. 

2. Council does hereby impose and levy the rates for the Year 2020 for each 
property class appearing on Schedule “A”, attached to and forming part of this 
bylaw. 

3. If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then 
the invalid portion must be severed and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to 
have been adopted without the severed section, subsection, paragraph, 
subparagraph, clause or phrase. 

 
READ A FIRST TIME on April 27, 2020   
 
READ A SECOND TIME on April 27, 2020 
 
READ A THIRD TIME on April 27, 2020 
 
ADOPTED by the Council on  
 
 
   

Neil Belenkie 
Mayor 

 Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
This is a certified a true copy of the 
2020 Annual Tax Rates Bylaw 560, 2020 
 

 

Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
 

 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 

2020 Annual Tax Rates 
Bylaw No. 560, 2020 

prichardson
Typewritten Text
7.1



2020 Annual Tax Rates Bylaw No. 560, 2020 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 05 11\Bylaw 560, 2020 - 2020 Tax Rates Bylaw.docx  

2 
 
 
 
 

SCHEDULE “A” 
 

2020 Rates Established by Council  
(Dollars of Tax/$1000 assessed value) 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 



  
 

A bylaw to establish an Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Scheme for 2020 

WHEREAS pursuant to Part 7, Division 10, Section 235 of the Community Charter a 
municipality may establish an Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Scheme;  

AND WHEREAS the Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Scheme may include one or 
more dates on which all or part of the property taxes are due and may establish  
penalties and interest to be applied in relation to payments made after the Tax Due Date;  

AND WHEREAS pursuant to the Community Charter, Section 236, an owner may elect 
which of the following Tax Schemes to use by giving written notice of their choice of 
election to the Village of Belcarra before June 30, 2020: 

a) Section 234, the General Tax Collection Scheme; or 
b) Section 235, the Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Scheme; 

 
AND WHEREAS pursuant to Section 236 of the Community Charter, if an owner does 
not make an election, the established Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Scheme 
applies. 

NOW THEREFORE, the Council of the Village of Belcarra enacts as follows: 

1. This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as “Village of Belcarra Alternative 
Municipal Tax Collection Scheme for 2020 Bylaw No. 562, 2020”. 

2. Property taxes for 2020 year are due on July 2, 2020. 

3. a) If all or part of the property taxes for 2020 are not paid by the July 2, 2020, due   
date, the Village of Belcarra will add to the unpaid property taxes a penalty equal 
to 2% of the portion that remains unpaid; 

 b) If all or part of the property taxes for 2020 are not paid by September 2, 2020, 
the Village of Belcarra will add to the unpaid property taxes a further penalty 
equal to 3% of the portion that remains unpaid.         

         c) The penalty dates and related percentages in 3 a) and 3 b) above do not apply 
to class 6 (business and other) and class 8 (recreation/non-profit) properties as 
the penalty date and related percentage for these properties are as stipulated by 
the Province of BC. 

4. If a portion of this bylaw is held invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then 
the invalid portion must be severed and the remainder of this bylaw is deemed to 
have been adopted without the severed section, subsection, paragraph, 
subparagraph, clause or phrase. 

5. This bylaw will automatically repeal and cease to have force and effect on 
December 31, 2020. 

 

 

 

VILLAGE OF BELCARRA 

Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Scheme for 2020 
Bylaw No. 562, 2020 

prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text

prichardson
Typewritten Text
7.2



Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Scheme for 2020 Bylaw No. 562, 2020 

J:\Files Admin\Administration\Council Meetings\Agenda\Agenda 2020\2020 05 11\Bylaw 562, 2020 2020 Alternative Municipal Tax 
Collection Scheme Bylaw.docx  

2 
 

 
READ A FIRST TIME on April 27, 2020 
 
READ A SECOND TIME on April 27, 2020 
 
READ A THIRD TIME on April 27, 2020 
 
ADOPTED by the Council on  
 
 
   

Neil Belenkie 
Mayor 

 Lorna Dysart 
Chief Administrative Officer 

 
This is a certified a true copy of the 
Alternative Municipal Tax Collection Scheme for 2020 Bylaw No. 562, 2020 
 

 

Lorna Dysart, Chief Administrative Officer 
 

 
 
 



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.1



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.2



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.3





prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.4



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.5



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.6



prichardson
Typewritten Text
8.7






